
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, November 6th, 2014.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 



Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member 
Jim Creighton, Board Member 

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney
 



Ed Vergano, Town Engineer



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will have a couple of changes to the agenda which will go under ‘new business’ PB 44-95 and PB 02-12.  Can I have a motion?

So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 6, 2014:
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked may I have a motion to adopt the minutes of October 6th?
So moved, seconded.
Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I gave Chris corrections last week.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:
PB 1-13      a.
Memos dated October 3, 2014 from Holly Haight, Fire Inspector and October 6, 2014 from Ken Hoch, Code Enforcement Division and a letter dated October 22, 2014 from David Steinmetz, Esq. as required by Condition #2 of Planning Board Resolution 11-13 to provide an update to the Planning Board on the operation of the site and any substantial code violations for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir located at 141 Furnace Woods Road.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we did receive these three pieces of correspondence all indicating that there were no problems there.  Everything is in order. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move we receive and file the three pieces of correspondence.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS: 

PB 5-14      a.
Application of Vincent D’Addona, for the property of G&V Properties Inc., for Amended Site Development Plan approval and a Tree Removal Permit for modifications to the approved site plan for the existing Hilltop Nursery and Garden Center located at 2028 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Existing/Proposed Site Plan for the Hilltop Nursery & Garden Center, LLC” prepared by Ed Gemmola latest revision dated September 25, 2014 and a 3 page set of floor plans and elevations also prepared by Ed Gemmola dated September 25, 2014. (see prior PB 13-07).

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it doesn’t appear as if anyone is here from the applicant.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess we’ll just move along.  We’ll come back.



*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we read the actual description.  You’re here so are you ready? This is the Hilltop Nursery and Garden Center.  We were there Sunday for a site inspection and there were a few concerns on the part of the members and staff.  I guess at this particular point we just dive right into some of the concerns that they had.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m sure that you know that Ed Gemmola revised the drawing and submitted it based on the comments from the site inspection.  He did note in the back corner and provided details of the cold storage tent that the Planning Board was asking about in this back corner and he did provide more detail on the plan about the mafia blocks.  One of the things the Planning Board noticed was that the sides in the back of the bins weren’t tall enough to hold the material in so he did add more information about that.  He did note that this greenhouse is going to be put back up. 

Mr. Glenn Griffin responded yes, it’s being repaired right now.  It got blown over last year.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one other thing that came up at the site inspection was, I think, you had mentioned your desire to plant some additional trees.  I think it was in this area.

Mr. Griffin responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but he didn’t put anything on this plan, that I can see, saying how many or…

Mr. Griffin stated he said that it was too much work to do all the species and get everything in time for all the exact locations as required by the board.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and lastly, he did show the enlarged addition in the back, in the side and provided a floor plan and elevation drawings for that.

Mr. Griffin responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so that’s just an update based on site inspection of the changes.  I guess that is the side of the bigger proposed addition.  That’s the back of the bigger proposed…

Mr. Griffin stated that’s correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we just got these revised drawings as we walked in so I really haven’t had time to look at them but one of the things I noticed with the old one, after some while it came to me, I didn’t notice that there were any bathrooms on the site.  Are there?

Mr. Griffin responded yes there is.  There is one downstairs and there’s three upstairs.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m talking about for customer use; for staff and customer use, let me put it that way.

Mr. Griffin stated yes, there’s one in the gift shop.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated when you’re standing at the counter, in the back right corner.  I saw the doors that said ‘restroom.’

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good, I didn’t notice one so that’s why I’m asking.  Other members?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked one question: I understand that the three greenhouses are going to be replaced by a barn structure that was in the approved site plan originally, is that still the plan to do that?

Mr. Griffin responded that’s correct, eventually yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and that’s going to happen or approximately…

Mr. Griffin responded we’re trying to get some new lines of product to sell and probably going to get our distributorship is probably going to take over a year so it probably wouldn’t be until 2016.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so the dotted line that is shown here for the future barn is still accurate in terms of  the space it is going to occupy.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I just ask a quick question again, I haven’t looked at the map, the drawings.  How high did he make the sides of the bins?

Mr. Griffin responded I think to your request, I believe it was 6 feet.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the height of the materials is 6 feet.  I had asked that you do the sides at 4.

Mr. Griffin stated he just made it to your request, whatever you guys requested for.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, well he if he thought 6 feet, that’s even better.  When I asked about it, I think were used, and the mount slopes come – so it wasn’t really necessary to do 6 feet.  I think 4 would be sufficient.

Mr. Griffin stated I’d rather do 4 but if 6 makes you happy.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t have a plan in front of me but that’s dictated by the height of the jersey barriers, the sides?

Mr. Robert Foley responded jersey barriers that we saw weren’t 6 feet.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated they were very short.

Mr. Griffin stated we’re going to rebuild all of them. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated three feet if anything.

Mr. Griffin stated were’ taking the jersey barriers out because they’re really just – you can’t really use them, they’re non-functional.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so it will be 6 feet high – you’re proposing 6 feet between each storage area…

Mr. Griffin responded no, I think it’ll be 10 or 12 feet but the height in between will be 6 feet, to hide the material.

Mr. Robert Foley asked 6 feet in the back and both sides?

Mr. Griffin responded yes sir.  That’s correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s to keep the materials from sliding off in the back.  Any other questions, concerns, etc?

Mr. Robert Foley asked the drainage ditch behind where the jersey barriers now are, is that – that’s still within your property right?
Mr. Griffin responded yes, and we’re 15 to 20 feet beyond that as well.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where that fencing is?

Mr. Griffin responded that’s correct. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked where does that ditch go - is that just a dry ditch or does that drain…?
Mr. Griffin responded that’s a temporary ditch that was made by Brian to divert the water but we plan on…

Mr. Robert Foley asked it doesn’t end up down on 9A or anything?

Mr. Griffin responded oh no, no, it goes towards the wetlands in the back.  There’s a small pond back there.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just for the record, our arborist will confirm that the 17 trees that were marked out in the field to be removed are in fact dead trees.  We don’t want to remove any live trees.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that was just based on the fact that our arborist had been out there weeks ago and we just want to confirm that what he agreed in the field is accurately represented on the trees that were marked out there.  This is the only note that I see that was added: “mafia concrete blocks similar and equal to such and such,” and then there’s a description of the 15’ x 25’ x 6’ high – so when you say by “6 foot high” that’s the actual size of the bin and then material also won’t exceed 6 feet. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked is that right?  It’s 6 feet for the material and 6 feet for the wall.

 Mr. Griffin responded yes, we’re not allowed to exceed 6 feet and you’d expressed your concern about the visual so we decided that we would just take care of it within the site plan.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s good.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked when you’re saying you’d prefer 4, I wouldn’t have a problem between items, that would be your issue if things mixed up and then you’d have to dispose of items that get mixed but I think our concern is that nothing goes over, pushed beyond the materials area and nothing comes back into the parking lot.  As long as, I’m comfortable with, the back and the far ends both have 6 feet, what’s separating the individual, the item 4, the mulch, it wouldn’t matter to me but I leave that to the rest of you if that’s something – I don’t have to see 6 feet between the items.  It’s only business.
Mr. Griffin responded it’s the sides and the back 6 feet would probably be really good.  In between 4 feet may not be necessary but if we deem it necessary we’ll do it. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked and your main driveway….? It remains pervious or the dirt and gravel?  You’re not paving or anything?

Mr. Griffin responded there’s no paving.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m a little concerned about the bulk appearance of the bins at 6 foot high.  I’m just questioning the board.  You may want the walls themselves to be a little bit less than…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, as you say Jim, the dividing ones between the bins maybe shouldn’t be 6 because that would seem like a 6 foot wall, 6 foot wall, 6 foot wall, maybe as you say just the ends.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated because at 6 feet you could probably put 8 feet of material in there so that’s just going to give you more.  I think 4 feet is probably a good amount.

Mr. Griffin stated no problem.  We’ll make that change.
Mr. Robert Foley stated 4 feet on the sides, 6 feet in the back.

Mr. Griffin stated aesthetically it’ll probably look better too.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other concerns, questions?  Can I have a motion for the public hearing?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I was just going to say, we spoke at the site visit that we could prepare a Resolution also for next time with the public hearing, if there’s a public hearing.  If people show up then we could just not pass the Resolution, just because it’s getting late to get work done if that’s okay with the rest of the board it’s okay with me.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated actually, Peter is making that motion, is that okay with you?

Mr. Peter Daly responded yes, Madame Chair I move that we schedule a public hearing for this application on December 2nd and that we direct staff to prepare an approving Resolution. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you so much.  Can I get a second to that?
Seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the Resolution will have all the things that were left over from the last Resolution as well, the commitments?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, he’s already committed to those but yes we’ll reinforce them. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and about the new planting of the trees.  I guess we’ll just have to wait for the Resolution…

Mr. Griffin stated one of the other reasons was I told you we were going to use plant material that really isn’t up to par to sell so to give the exact specie we really couldn’t do it so quickly, but I’m willing to – I’ll probably wind up planting even more than we’d talked about. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you still have another week or two, if you and Ed can come up with something and revise the drawings somehow, you can even show – it would be up to the board whether they were satisfied but you could show lobs or rectangles and say “plantings” or something to reflect on the plan for the public hearing because I really don’t think you can plant unless it’s reflected on the plan.  Try to get it shown on the plan if you want to be able to do it.

Mr. Griffin stated okay, not a problem.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you’ll have your public hearing next time.

Mr. Griffin stated thank you so much.  Have a good night guys.

PB 7-14      b.
Application of Westchester Spray Zone, LLC, for the property of Appian Way Ventures, LLC, for Amended Site Development Plan approval for an automotive spray booth, with no repair or collision work, located in an existing tenant space at 260 Madeline Ave. as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Spray Booth Location, Amended Site Development Plan for Appian Way Ventures, LLC” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated October 22, 2014 (see prior PB 6-09).

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and I don’t know if you want to skip reading – if you want to read the whole next in because no one’s here from that applicant either but if you want to read it in and then it’s easier to come back to later.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe I will read it when they’re here.  They are supposed to be here right?  They didn’t say they weren’t coming?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they’re aware.



*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we skipped over you because you weren’t here.  Are you ready?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes.  Good evening.  I am Ron Wegner from Cronin Engineering.  I am here to first-and-foremost, to answer any questions you may have on the project and give you a little bit of background and explanation as to why we’re proposing it.  Currently, as far as facilities to spray cars, there is somewhat of a shortage in Westchester County.  One of the reasons is due to difficulties in permitting generally with the county.  Towns are one thing, county is another.  Because of this, there are a lot of facilities that don’t have their own spray booths.  If they don’t have their own, their options are limited.  The options include: renting a booth from another shop, spraying in your shop without a booth; which is not the best scenario, trying to install a booth illegally; you usually get caught in that situation, or just bringing your car home and spraying once again outdoors in an unprotected environment.  Those are not good scenarios.  The booths for rental, the ones that are existing may not be of the best quality booths, like I said, with illegal booths, you’re probably going to get caught because the other shops are going to know, the building inspector, the local building inspector will find out, and the other two options of spraying without a booth, just in the shop in the open air or bringing the car to a home environment, it’s not good for the environment, it’s not good for the sprayer and you don’t get a good finish on the car.  
Mr. Jim Creighton asked when they presented this earlier and we were talking about those environmental issues that you’re raising, did you bring any additional information for us to talk about what environmental effects this particular project…

Mr. Ron Wegner responded I have some dialogue and I am ready to answer your questions.  Our proposal is to provide this high-quality booth.  This would be what’s known as a downdraft booth.  It’ll be new.  It’ll be the latest technology and what a downdraft booth is: air comes in from the top of the booth and is vented out, filtered through the bottom and this provides a good environment for the person spraying.  Any spray goes down and away from you.  You’re not getting it on your person, on your clothes.  You’re wearing a white suit anyhow.  Also, it’s good for the finish of the vehicle because if you’re spraying the front of the car and you’re going across the back, you’re going to get overspray so two good reasons why we’re going with this particular type of facility.  With our facilities, it also has a spray-and-bake facility which means once the car is sprayed a gas-powered heater on the roof can be turned on and bake the car and provide a nice finish in a quick amount of time.  It also provides a good finish on the car.  It also provides for a quicker turnaround time.  If you do not bake when you spray, you leave the car wherever you paint it and that booth is not available for the next car.  It does take some time to cure but you get a better finish, less chance of dust or anything getting on the car.  To address the emissions, which I think is what you’re – the crux to your question.  The emissions come from the paint, that’s where the emissions come from.  The paint is made of pigment which are solids, those are the colors, it has hardeners and resins in it which allows the paint to cure and gives it a nice hard finish that sticks to the metal and it also has solvents and the solvents are what keep the paint liquid and make it a sprayable form so you can apply it.  Currently, the common technology is those solvents are the volatile organic compounds which is generally has health concerns.  The filters in the spray booth, they catch all the solids, or 98% of them, not 100% but the vast majority of them.  The volatiles go through pretty much every filter technology that there is.  There might be some extravagant method of removing the volatiles but for the concentrations we’re talking about, it’s not practical, it’s not used.  To address these volatile compounds, the EPA has come up with regulations that are going to limit: 1) the amount of volatiles you’re allowed to have in the paint, 2) the type of spray equipment you use that reduces the amount of overspray that leaves the car, increases the amount of paint that stays on the car and therefore reduces the amount of volatiles that leave overall.  These measures, they start at the federal government, they’re enforced and monitored by the county which I alluded to before, and also registration with the DEC is required when you have a spray booth.  That is the current technology, what we are proposing is using water borne paints, it’s relatively new.  It’s been around in Europe and it’s coming around in the states and the advantages to water born paints, instead of those volatile compounds that are typically used, water is the solvent.  There are some differences in the equipment you use.  It has to be like stainless steel so it won’t rust and the cleaning procedures are with water as opposed to solvents so it’s generally a cleaner paint.  The finish is something that the painters will have to get used to.  The primer and clear coats are still solvent-based, they haven’t come up with water born versions of those yet, however, the volatile concentrations in your color coat are much greater than in the primer and the clear coat and also you generally apply more color coat than you do the primer and the clear.  With all those things, it brings the overall volatile component of an entire paint job down to a half, by a third or a half over what is permitted.
Mr. Jim Creighton asked so from a business model that sounds really good.  I guess what that raises some issues, things that I think staff had asked about.  So, if you’re using water born solvent or water born compounds, what measures do you have in place to avoid the – how is this going to affect the sewage treatment facilities or what type of processes or facilities do you have to capture those compounds and ensure that they don’t affect the…
Mr. Ron Wegner responded I don’t think they’re flushed.  I’m about certain that they are contained and taken away.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so you’re about certain…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated I will confirm this but that is part of the whole advantage.  My knowledge and my study of it, it’s like I said, it’s a relatively new and becoming accepted here technology.  It is taken away.  You don’t dump it down the sewer.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked is there a drain facility that’s built?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded there is no drains in that facility right now.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked how is the water collected, the paints…

Mr. Ron Wegner responded it would be collected in a drum and removed from the site that way. 

Mr. Jim Creighton asked the squeegee collecting it and putting it in a drum?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded everything would be done in an enclosed area in the mixing room, on a bench.  If there’s any work to be done, it would be in a pan and contained in it.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you have the car and you have this fan pushing everything down onto the car and onto the ground?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded filtered air.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the air is coming down and when it hits the ground, where does it go?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded it’s sucked out the bottom sides of the booth.  The plan has – I don’t know if my pointer is going to work on your screen.  The booth is set up so that there are a large set of filters.  The entire ceiling of the booth is one giant filter where air comes in so air is diffused evenly through the whole room and then out the sides near the bottom is where the air exits the booth.  So, air comes into the ceiling and then out the bottom sides.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and the materials – there’s nothing on the floor from the paint?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded there’s filters -- no it’s airborne.  You might sweep it but it’s a clean room.  It has to be a clean room because you’re painting cars in there.  Any solids or overspray is captured by the paint and the filters on the bottom – or captured in the filters on the bottom sides of the booth.  The filtered air is brought in and then the air is filtered before it leaves the booth.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so there’s no residue that leaves the booth area underneath it, whatever, it goes into these drums?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded no, no, that’s no.  There’s no liquid that leaves the booth area.  Any waste out of the booth area is captured in the filters and you would take the filters and throw them away and any liquids or solvents that you’re working with will be working in the mixing room in a separate contained room, ventilated, self-contained and would be stored in closed containers.  
Mr. Robert Foley asked so this top to bottom, the downdraft, that’s all contained through the air?  The air emissions are all controlled through your venting system, your filtering system?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded absolutely.  That’s how it works.  The air that comes in, in a heater, there’s a pre-filter that comes in and then in the roof there’s another filter that cleans the air because you don’t want dirty air on your car finish or dust and then as the air leaves the spray booth, it goes through from front to back, two foot high, there’s filters on both sides and the air goes through those filters, any solids in the air is captured and those filters and fans draw up and through the roof if anything remains.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how does the air go back up through the roof?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded from the bottom they have – in the center of the booth there’s two-foot diameter pipes that go right up the sides, both sides, and right out through the roof, straight up to the roof.  Chris is right there, that’s one side and there’s a matching two-foot diameter fan right on the other side.  In this particular case, in this application, the fans will actually be mounted up on the roof.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked those fans aren’t shown on your plan?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded they’re shown in that schematic diagram there and the stack location is shown on the plan.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I see the heater on…

Mr. Ron Wegner stated okay, and if you look at the drawing on the left, you see those little circles, those two circles right there would be the discharge points. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what about the fan that is taking the air in?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded that is that big rectangular heater and right there where Chris has the pointer on the bottom end that would be the intake of the heater: air is sucked in, heated and goes straight down, the heater right into the top of the spray booth.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I thought there was air that comes in while they’re doing the work and then there’s the heater after you’re done with the work.
Mr. Ron Wegner responded no, heated air, the heater is up on the roof, air is drawn into the heater, the air is heated and then down into the work area and then discharged through the bottom sides.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked can you just mention briefly that a car – this is a garage door on the side of the building and if the Planning Board goes out and does a site inspection they’ll see that, but the cars come in: do they have to go around and get in the booth this way?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded no.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked okay, they come right in?
Mr. Ron Wegner stated the cars to spray would come right in the front.  They pull right in the garage door and come straight into the booth.  The only vehicular access to the booth is right in the front of the booth.  In the back side of the booth, I think it’s 8 foot by 14 foot or 8’ x 12’ is the mixing room, so there’s a separate room on the back where the paints are mixed.  Also, there will be door directly from the mixing room right into the spray booth.  Any vehicles that do come in for storage would be required to come around the turn and pull in behind the booth.  The facility is not big enough to accept a large vehicle.  I think the door to the booth is 8 ½ feet and the ceiling inside is 9 feet.  That being said, feasibly, the largest thing you could paint might be a cargo van or possibly a mason’s dump truck.  That would be the biggest vehicle which should be able to make the maneuver in the building for storage in the back. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do the cars come in and out the same door?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes.  They would generally pull in forward or backward and go out the opposite way.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so you’ll be applying for the county DEC emission’s permit on this, which addresses all of the things you just said in the permit and controls the emissions to the environment as well…

Mr. Ron Wegner responded exactly, and with the spray booths you generally try to get down to where your limits are allowed.  With the water born paints we’re going to be under.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked they’re water-based paints but there’s still some VOCs and are they stored within the booth itself or they have a ventilated storage area within the booth?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded they will be stored in sealed containers, yes.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and it’s all fire code and all of that?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded absolutely, yes.  It has to be. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words then, the county permit would specify how often the emissions filters have to be checked or replaced?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded absolutely and that would generally be based on air pressures behind the filters, between the filter and the fan.  If the filter gets clogged you’re going to have a low air pressure – the fan will be sucking out the top through the filter, that’s how they will know if the filters need replaced if there’s a low pressure behind the filter.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it would be the responsibility of the operator?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked also, on your diagram, the mixing room, in other words do any cars pass through the mixing room after they’ve been painted, or they back out you said?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded they back out the front door.

Mr. Robert Foley asked they don’t migrate into that mixing…

Mr. Ron Wegner responded that would be one paint job if they did.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked how many cars do you expect or are you planning for?  I mean, it’s one at a time and would you have some waiting around to come in or…
Mr. Ron Wegner responded we store the cars inside in the back.  I’m looking at – I’m told around 2 hours for painting and curing at a really, really good pace, best case scenario.  Like I said earlier, when you pull a car in, it’s there until it’s dried.  It does take some time.  We’re not doing 50 cars there. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you might line up 3 or 4 for a day or something like that?
Mr. Ed Vergano asked Ron, can you add some turning radii to show how the cars maneuver inside the building?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded we could but you know what, they’ll be maneuvering and I think you can see it at the site visit how the maneuvering would take place and if there’s going to be a vehicle that can’t make that maneuver it probably won’t fit in the spray booth.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated let’s see some turning radii.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded okay, we can accommodate that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the pedestrian access, does that mean the people bring their cars there or would an automotive shop bring them?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded generally it would be the automotive shop bringing them but as the space and to meet building codes, I think those are required, the pedestrian access.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so there would be a safe area for the pedestrians to wait for their car?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded no, no, no, we’re not having pedestrians wait for their car.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked will the building itself, aside from the spray booth, will the building itself be ventilated because you’re going to be operating, you’re going to be running cars in the building, inside, just to move them around, even if you get to the parking area or the staging area, whatever you call it.  Will there be ventilation in the entire space?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded generally, the doors are going to be open when you’re pulling in and out, however, I can check the requirements on the ventilation for the space.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated because you’re going to be having emissions from the cars.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated they’ll just be pulling in and out with the door open but I will confirm any requirements that are needed are met.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked are there any drains in the spray – anywhere where there’s going to be any paint mixing or spraying?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded there are no drains in the entire space so, no is the answer.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked is a paint spill or an overspray that would be mopped up manually right?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I have one last question.  Are the cars cleaned before they’re painted?

Mr. Ron Wegner responded are cars cleaned?  Well, the body work should be done.  The last thing that’s done before painting would be a very fine sanding and then they just have a cloth.  It’s called a cat cloth and they wipe it down with that, so it’s a dry process.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I was just curious, I mean you said several times there are no drains so I’m just wondering…

Mr. Ron Wegner responded the sanding, there might be what’s called wet sanding where you actually get the sandpaper a little bit wet but it’s barely enough to drip on the floor and it will dry up before it makes a puddle.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other questions, concerns, etc?  We thought we might want to come down for a site visit.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded we’d be thrilled to have you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated maybe.  It would be for November 23rd.

Mr. Ron Wegner asked November 23rd?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, are we going to schedule him first like at 9 o’clock?  Okay.  You’re going to have the information that Ed asked for by that time I hope.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded yes, and just to recap: turning radii and I’m going to just confirm the requirements for the space ventilation what they might be.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated yes, so there’s no built-up carbon monoxide or anything.  That’s the danger.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded right, exactly.  I’ll confirm what needs to be done.  I’m wondering if I could set up a public hearing since one is required for this project?  We’re not expecting a huge public turnout.  We’re basically working on the interior of an existing building.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know about in terms of the announcement.  Would you be able to announce something in time for – you wouldn’t…
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded our work session and the site inspection are early but the meeting is not until December 2nd.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked let me ask the board, what do you think?  You’re okay?  You asked and now you’re going to get one.

Mr. Ron Wegner responded thank you very much.  Nothing else?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated not now anyway.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chair I make a motion that we refer this back and that we schedule a site visit for November 23rd and a public hearing for December 2nd.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you on the 23rd.

Mr. Ron Wegner stated thank you and have a good night.

PB 4-14     c. Application of Mongoose Inc. for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 6 lot subdivision (5 building lots and 1 open space parcel) of a 128.8 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Maple Avenue and on the east side of Dickerson Road and Hilltop Drive as shown on an 8 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision of Abee Rose Situate in the Town of Cortlandt, Westchester County, NY” prepared by Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering PC, latest revision dated October 16, 2014.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated I’m a partner with Oxman Tulis Kirkpatrick Whyatt & Geiger in White Plains.  Among other things, we practice land use and environmental law throughout the Lower Hudson Valley. I’m here representing Jay Russ.  Jay is now the owner of the three corporations that own this property.  As you noted, this is an application for a 6-lot subdivision: 5 building lots, one open space lot.  With me here tonight is John Delano from Badey & Watson who will go through the actual plan.  We also have Steve Marino and Fred Welch from Tim Miller.  This property, as many of you know, has quite a history.  About 10 years ago, and more, it went through a long process as a 41-lot application before your board.  There was a Draft Environmental Impact Statement, a Final Environmental Impact Statement, a findings and a denial.  That culminated about 10 years ago.  Following consolidation of the ownership under Mr. Russ, and a valuation of the property in the light of this history and in the light of today’s regulations, negotiations were then held with the Town Board regarding donating the majority of the property.  An agreement was reached about a year ago for that donation.  It comprises approximately 100 acres.  Essentially, the land behind all the houses along Maple including the lake all the way up to the open space at the top which is part of the Valeria application of a few years ago. The remainder, what’s left, is 5 single-family houses.  In summary, we’ve gone from a 41-lot subdivision to a 5-lot subdivision.  I did want to point out that the Town Board, in disagreement, noted that this application is now significantly less intrusive, far more environmentally sound than previously proposed and in the agreement the Town Board agreed to support this application which we’re making before you and to request that it be processed as expeditiously as possible.  We have been before you, referred and answered general questions, come back with a more detailed application and I’d like John Delano to go through that for you.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated just so I’m clear, but Mr. Russ owned it before did he not?
Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded Mr. Russ had two partners.  He owned one of the corporations.  He was the main line but it took him a while to clarify, we’ll call it clarify, the ownership of the other two.

Mr. John Delano stated good evening.  John Delano, engineer with the firm of Badey & Watson, Surveying Engineer P.E. Cold Spring, N.Y.  The 5-lot proposal which Chris just took off the screen. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked do you want to see yours or do you like that one?

Mr. John Delano responded the color one you have up is probably easier to see.  There’s a lot of black ink on the other one.  Everything you see in blue is water.  Everything you see in orange is too steep to build on, especially in regards to the septic systems.
Mr. Ed Vergano asked what grade is that?  Are those 15% slopes?

Mr. John Delano responded can you see what the thing is there?  It’s probably 15% and over, the steep slopes. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that we like would be gradient, 15 to 20, 20 to 25, above 25. 

Mr. John Delano asked a little more detailed slope analysis?  

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I think the Planning Board is going to want it.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Mr. John Delano stated email me what you like and we can put the right switch in and run it through the computer again.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe I read something somewhere that it’s like 60% of the property is steep slopes 15 and over then there was like 20% that was from 15 to 20 and then the rest, that little small part was – but it needs to be on…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but similar to what we require with the trees and the wetlands, you would only be showing what’s within the areas for development.  We don’t necessarily need the slope gradient for the 100 acres.

Mr. John Delano stated for the entire parcel.  Tell me what you want and we’ll get it done so the board has it as it is exactly what they’re asking for.  If you look at the schematic that’s up right now you see – and I’ll tell you the areas in blue are wetlands and water surface.  The areas in orange are too steep to do much of anything on.  The areas in white are what we have left where we won’t need the steep slopes permit and we can do some construction with comparative ease.  You see the new road that comes in off of, what’s that Hilltop up there?  That’s about a 600-foot new cul-de-sac.  There will some disturbance on steeper slopes.  It’s mostly cut getting in there, a little bit of fill at the end.  That’ll give us access to four residential lots up on the hill.  The fifth lot comes in down from the bottom off an existing road.  It’s a right-of-way and we’ll need a wetland permit to access that lot because of the stream that we need to cross.  This lot was something that was established before we became involved with the project and I’m sure Mr. Kirkpatrick can relate some of the history on it, as probably could Mr. Wells.  We initially went out and investigated for septic areas based on that schematic while we were in the process of lining up a wetland consultant with the town.  We’re working with the original old wetland information that was on record with the town.  I guess through the 40 something lot subdivision that they were working on.  Our findings in the field were not good and they were confirmed when we got the latest wetland delineations done and mapped.  As a result of that we had to adjust, we had to move and reinvestigate for septic systems.  It turned out some of the originally contemplated areas were either directly in wetland and/or a wetland buffer.  As a result of that, the configuration of the four lots in the upper part of the subdivision is not the same as it was, I think, when the Town Boards sat down with the applicant but we did do our best effort to rebalance the areas so that the open space lot that will be offered is being offered to the town is still of the magnitude of 106 acres.  It’s only different by several hundred square feet in area.  We’ve been out to the property with the Westchester Health Department.  They’ve seen all our deep test holes.  They’re okay with that.  We’ve sat down with them and gone over – we’ve perc. tested most of them.  We have yet to schedule the perc. testing on a couple of the lots but everything was reasonable.  We think we have road alignment in there that will be satisfactory to the town and the town engineer, although we have not reviewed it with him, this alignment is pretty, fairly consistent with the alignment that was on the original development sketch from where we started.  We did sit down with Mr. Vergano early on before going out to do anything.  We tried to widen up the swath of the property here between the – that’s not on our project to the left and between the back of lot 3 we widened that up so the town would have a bigger swath from the lower portion of the open space parcel to the upper part with the bulk of lot 6.  
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked the purple are the wetland buffer boundaries?
Mr. John Delano responded the blue is water and wetland, the purple curving linear line all about the place represents the wetland buffer lines.  You can see our septic systems are generally rectangular configurations with the exes in them on each of the lots.  You can see they’re on the white part of the mapping which is slopes that are not in excess of 15% because we can get a septic approved on anything that’s that steep.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you had mentioned for lot 5, coming off Maple, you would need a wetland permit.

Mr. John Delano stated we definitely need a wetland permit on lot 5 coming off Maple. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated also I would imagine for this road as well. 

Mr. John Delano responded yes, we’re in the buffer of the upper wetland there that straddles the lot line on lot 4 so wetland permit will be needed to construct a roadway.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how far on lot 3 is that septic system from the house?

Mr. John Delano responded far, far away.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked obviously downhill?

Mr. John Delano responded it’s all downhill but it is far away.  The original area…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked give me a sense of far.

Mr. John Delano responded I honestly don’t know…
Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s nowhere near one of the vernal pools?
Mr. John Delano responded Mr. Marino is going to talk to the environmental issues.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m just looking at this.  If you said the cul-de-sac is 600 feet, this certainly looks more than 600 feet. 

Mr. John Delano responded the cul-de-sac does not exceed 600 feet.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but that septic system looks like it’s a lot further than…

Mr. John Delano stated that’s why I laid this out here.  The septic systems were not raised.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I would think it’s like 800 feet. 

Mr. John Delano stated about 700 feet from the house.  The previous area that had been delineated for a septic system on that lot was actually towards the rear of the lot and was in a wetland buffer, right in there.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked and the DOH has no concerns about the distance of the septic system from the house?

Mr. John Delano responded no, downhill, uphill, gravity pump.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked are any of the septics uphill of the houses?

Mr. John Delano responded I believe lot 4 is going to need a pump; lot 1 is going to need a pump.  I’m sorry it’s lot 4 will need a pump, 3, 2 and 1 are downhill and I believe lot 5 will get away with a gravity system as well.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked also you said that you found nice spots for all the homes but I guess lot 3 is the one, I don’t know if I quite agree with that.

Mr. John Delano responded lot 3 doesn’t have – there’s not much options for the house site on lot 3.  I don’t recall how far we are off from where the original house site was shown.  We did move the house on lot 4 down off the knolls so it will be less visible and would be on gentler slopes.  Chris, do you have the original Abee Rose sketch from which this project evolved?  That’s where it started from.  That would be helpful.  The lot 3 house site, it doesn’t look like we’ve moved a lot 3 house site from where it started with the agreement has progressed with the Town Board.  The lot 4 house site, we actually pulled back around.  It was actually going to be up on a knoll just below the septic area shown on lot 4, but we pulled that down in elevation so it wouldn’t be so visible and it will make the driveway for that lot a little bit shorter.  
Mr. Steven Kessler asked Chris, do we have that agreement between the Town Board and the applicant?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can you send that out?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, I think you got it at one point.  It would have been a while ago.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated okay, I think I got it.
Mr. John Delano stated we were fairly consistent with the house site on lot 2 with regard to that agreement and the house site on lot 1 got moved around a little bit because we didn’t find it feasible to get a reasonable driveway grade down to the house as it was positioned on the documents used with the Town Board. 

Mr. Jim Creighton asked would you describe – what’s the story with the, our property?  Who owns it?  What’s happening with it?

Mr. John Delano responded I don’t have much light to shed on that for you.  I honestly don’t know who the owner is.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you don’t know who owns it?

Mr. John Delano responded I don’t know off the top of my head who owns it.  I haven’t studied it that hard to memorize it.  I’ve been more involved with the engineering and the Health Department and trying to get a plan together that outparcel those constraints will make the engineering department happy.
Mr. Robert Foley asked does the town know?

Mr. John Delano responded I’m sure the town has it on record as to who owns it but the outparcel is almost entirely consumed by a wetland buffer.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we can find out. 

Mr. Jim Creighton asked has the applicant had any communication with the owner of the outparcel?

Mr. John Delano responded I’m not sure. No.  
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that wasn’t – saying it was an issue is not the right word but the issue came up during the 10 or 12 years that this was previously before the Planning Board and I don’t recall if that person ever attended any meetings or brought anything up but we’ll get more information about that.

Mr. John Delano stated the old survey says it belongs to a Helen Rumper.
Mr. Robert Foley asked probably less than an acre?

Mr. John Delano responded I would imagine so.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so then we create a land lot parcel, is that what we do?
Mr. Robert Foley stated in the other section which isn’t part of the site, that scoop, that’s part of the other property.

Mr. John Delano asked what’s that?

Mr. Robert Foley responded below part of lot – it would be east of lot 3, down in there.

Mr. John Delano stated that’s not part of the subject parcel.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and the one that scoops down towards the lake.

Mr. John Delano responded nor is that.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other questions?

Mr. John Delano stated I’ll have Mr. Marino come up and he can speak on any of the environmental questions, the birds and the bees.  

Mr. Steve Marino stated good evening, Steve Marino.  I’m a wetlands scientist with Tim Miller Associates.  I’ve been involved with this project since back in the late ‘90s, now it’s back, obviously in a different go-around.  As John Delano mentioned just this past June, July, the property was reflagged by Paul Jaehnig on behalf of the town.  We had done the original delineation back in 1998.  Some things have changed.  There are some minor revisions to the wetlands plan but generally it’s in all about the same place.  At one of the previous meetings, Steve Coleman was asked to look at the biodiversity issues associated with this project and report back to the town.  Steve prepared a report that he submitted to the town and I’d just kind of like to talk about a couple of items that came up in that report before we move on.  First was the question of vernal pools and that was an important part of Steve’s report.  Let me just say, from the beginning, I don’t have any significant issues with Steve’s findings, what he found out there.  We’re in agreement.  Like I said, we wrote the EIS back in the late ‘90s and Steve is seeing the same things we were seeing back then.  The big difference now obviously is the 106 acre parcel that’s being dedicated as open space compared to the original plan.  One of the things that Steve pointed out was the vernal pools and the fact that they are somewhere between 4 and 5 depressional areas that he identified on the property that could potentially be vernal pools.  I went out this past October and looked at each of those areas trying to get a better idea of what was going on.  In Steve’s recommendations, he recommended that things be postponed so that further studies could be done in the spring to look at those vernal pool issues.  I would like to try to make the case that perhaps we don’t need to postpone it to the April/May vernal pool habitat study season if we look at some of the issues associated with the vernal pools as he’s described them and what’s out there right now.  Steve mentioned the possibility of 5 vernal pools being in wetland ‘A’, ‘E’, ‘J’ and ‘K’ with two vernal pool areas potentially in wetland ‘E’.  There’s wetland ‘D’.  Wetland ‘A’ is right there next to where the proposed access road off of Hilltop will be coming in.  Wetland ‘E’ has the two in it and on parcel #5, the one that access is off of Maple, there was another area there that he identified as potentially being a vernal pool.  I went out and looked at four of the five areas that he identified I could see as two in particular before the five areas could potentially be vernal pool to the extent that they could support breeding amphibian habitat which is the important thing, issue with vernal pools.  A vernal pool, as you know, is a depressional area you find in the woods associated with other wetlands.  In and of itself, that depressional area fills up with water.  It’s not necessarily important.  The important feature of those is that they represent breeding habitat for critters wouldn’t otherwise have a place to go, particularly there’s mole salamanders, there’s several species of salamanders, there’s several species of frogs, there’s an animal called a fairy shrimp, they breed in vernal pools in the late winter, then they go off to the upland areas adjacent to the vernal pools to do their things the rest of the year.  The important consideration really is, are any of these pool areas holding water long enough so that the amphibians can come down, do their thing in the late winter and they go back off into the woods.  In four of the five areas that Steve identified, I see the potential for that happening.  The fifth area is in wetland ‘K’ which is down there in the lower right hand corner of the screen.  That really is a wooded swamp system of braided channels and streams.  In the report that I submitted my response supplement to Steve’s report, there are some photographs in there that show you what wetland ‘K’ looks like and in my opinion, wetland ‘K’ is really not a candidate for vernal pool and if it did have a vernal pool in it, the likelihood of there being amphibian breeding is very small because there’s development all around that area.  What Steve mentioned in his report regarding the spring survey season, and then doing an analysis based on Dr. Klemens, and I know that Dr. Klemens has appeared before this board.  His name has come up numerous times during the years.  He’s one of the experts on vernal pool breeding and the conservation of these areas.  Steve suggested we look at his report and kind of see how our proposal is going to impact those breeding pools if in fact they are being used by amphibians.  We’ve gone through that analysis and if Chris you could go to, I think it’s #3.  Basically, what the Klemens/Calhoun report, that’s the famous vernal pool breeding report, basically what that suggests is that if you have a vernal pool that’s being used for amphibian breeding that you have no activity within a hundred feet of that pool and limited activity within 750 feet of the pool, 750 feet representing with the far range of how far salamanders will crawl from their breeding pool to their summer hunting grounds outside of the vernal pool.  They tend to go 450 to 500 feet from their little pool.  He’s being conservative by saying 750 so we used 750 as the number.  He suggests, again no development within 100 feet and only limited development within 750 feet.  What I did is I took the four vernal pool areas that I found out there.  The one particularly next to wetland ‘A’ which would be – that’s the one where the road is going to be coming in from Hilltop.  It’s relatively close to that.  That one there, if you look out in the field, it’s topographically, you wonder whether it really does hold water long enough during the year.  It’s got a little bit of a pitch to it but for the sake of this discussion we’ll say yes it’s a vernal pool and yes it could potentially be supporting breeding amphibians.  So, we went through the analysis and we looked at the 100 foot vernal pool envelope and we looked at the 750 foot critical upland habitat and you can see the yellow area on that map represents areas that are already developed.  Those are the houses and lawn areas and driveways on Hilltop and Dickerson Road coming up towards the top of the hill.  The light green areas that you see – is that #1?  I’m sorry but I can’t see it.  The light green areas are the areas that are going to be impacted by our proposed development.  As you can see, it’s just inside the 100 foot circle, that’s that kind of purplish, blue line there in the middle, there’s a tiny bit of encroachment; that’s associated with grading for the driveway, it’s not for the access road.  It’s not the actual access road itself but it’s a little bit of grading off the edge.  As Mr. Delano mentioned there will be some grading in that area to get grades right, to get the access road in.  That’ll be grading and restored as vegetated after construction.  Very little, if anything, 1,300 square feet I think I calculated going on within the 100 foot setback.  The light green area is area of development within the 750 foot envelope and for that particular lot, site #1.  Currently, there’s about 20% of that 750 foot area is developed.  After construction there’ll be about 30%.  Again, this is the pool of the four that is least likely, in my opinion, to be a vernal pool when we go through that exercise.  There will be some impact to the 750 foot buffer because it slightly exceeds the 25% recommended by our development up in there, for site #1.  Chris, if you could hit the page to go down to page 2 in that same document in that pdf. Site #2 is the one that’s most likely, in my opinion, to be a vernal pool.  It has the classic vernal pool topography, vegetation.  When I walked by I knew right away that was a vernal pool.  That’s the largest of the four vernal pools.  It’s located in an area off an existing old logging road if you’re out in site you know there are logging roads throughout the property and that’s vernal pool #2.  That’s the one most likely, if you look at the photographs in my report you’ll see, again, classic vernal pool habitat topography. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked that one you’re just talking about, which photo…

Mr. Steve Marino responded I think at the bottom of the page it will say: “site 2, site 3, site 4.”

Mr. Robert Foley asked that wouldn’t be the photos?  The photos aren’t the ones that are included in here.  Those are wetland photos? 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they were wetlands mostly.

Mr. Steve Marino responded right, potential vernal pool, site 2.

Mr. Robert Foley stated wetland ‘D’, okay.

Mr. Steve Marino stated if it gets to be too tedious this discussion please let me know.  Biologists kind of get onto these things but if it gets to be too much – this particular vernal pool, there’s about 12% development in the 750 envelope and, as you know, 750 feet around the pool represent acres and acres of land but we look at the whole 750 feet and that development there associated with Maple Avenue is about 12% of the upland habitat is now developed.  Post-development with the Abee Rose development we get to about 19%.  This particular vernal pool which, again in my opinion, is the most likely to have breeding habitat stays well below the 25% criteria in the Clemens report even after development.  Click down again to #3.  Vernal pool #3 or site #3 is within 300 feet of vernal pool #2.  They’re both part of the same wetland, wetland E.  We went through the same analysis with site #3.  Site #3 is very small.  It’s only about 240-250 square feet.  Literally, it’s 20 feet by 7-8 feet, but again, vernal pools can support habitat even in areas that small if the hydrology is right.  In the current condition, there’s about 5%, you can see that little yellow blob on the upper right hand corner.  About 5% of the upland habitat is developed.  Post-development 16%, again, still well under the 25% recommendation.  And the last one, one more click to #4.  Site #4 is the one on parcel #5 which is accessed off of Maple Avenue.  The yellow there represents the development that’s already existing along Maple Avenue – it’s all coming off of Maple Avenue from one direction or another, all that yellow.  Currently, we’re at about 34% so we already exceed the 25% recommendation and if you look at the photos for area #4 you’ll see that not very far from the potential vernal pool there’s a house location, maybe less than 200 feet away.  This vernal pool, although it does have hydrology has a lot of encroachment around the area and there’s a question as to whether there’s enough area around it to support amphibian breeding long term.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked but that development’s all downhill?

Mr. Steve Marino responded actually the development on Maple Avenue is uphill from the site.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked oh it is?

Mr. Steve Marino responded yes.  When you go out there, again, it’s one of those areas that looks like a vernal pool but the proximity to other development is what makes it questionable as to whether it’s supporting habitat.  You can see the light green area through there.  There is some encroachment to the 100-foot buffer, about 4,000 square feet for the driveway access.  Again, that’s just driveway, that’s not actual paved area or gravel topped area; it’s grading to get the driveway in there.  I don’t know if in the long term if we looked at mitigation if there’s potential for putting a retaining wall maybe to reduce that amount of grading in there but we could certainly take a look into that.  So we go that one anyway numbers wise – number crunching we go from 34% to 38%, again, already exceeding the recommendations and we do increase the recommendation just a little bit.  What I would want to suggest is that rather than wait until the April/May breeding season to confirm one way or another what we’ve tried to do is take in what in our essence would be worst case scenario and say yes they’re all breeding pools and we’ve done the analysis assuming they are and if we could ask that you forward our analysis on to Steve Coleman see what he has to think.  We would rather not wait 7 or 8 months it’s going to take to get back out to the site.  As Mr. Kirkpatrick mentioned, we’re trying to expedite things.  If we could avoid that, based on the science presented, that would be something that we would certainly appreciate consideration on.  Certainly forward it to Steve, have him look at it and see what his recommendation on that would be.  There is one other document Chris.  I think it’s #4.  Steve also mentions the potential for doing breeding bird studies in the spring.  It’s another thing that we would rather – because that’s now April/May into June for breeding bird studies for forest interior birds.  That’s the photos, that would be #2.  So what I’ve tried to do with this particular with consideration of – the concern with breeding birds is that there are forest interior birds that like large open spaces and really only breed and congregate on areas that are far away from development and fragmentation of the woodlands.  What I’ve done in these two photographs here is I’ve tried to give some context as to where our development is.  We are talking about 128 acres, 106 acres of which will be preserved as it currently exists, so I think some credit for preservation of interior forest areas should be considered as part of this application.  As you can see, the yellow blobs there, one comes in off of Maple is wedged between the Hilltop community and the Maple Avenue community, that’s that lot 5 and then the other hydra-looking thing there in the middle, again, comes off of Hilltop and is a continuation of that development area.  If you look off to the right, off to the – there’s your 106 acres of open space.  If you look to the south of that, again, you get more context as to the amount of open space available on Dickerson Mountain for forest interior birds.  Chris, if you could just go to the next page in that same document, zoom out a little bit?  There’s the whole area with the Croton Reservoir down there and you can see, our little blob up there in the thousands of acres of open space available for bird species to the south, east and west of the developed area along Maple Avenue.  I would like to make the argument, although I wouldn’t call it an argument, is that a forest interior bird breeding study is probably not necessary considering how the project has gone from 41 lots to 5 lots and we’re now preserving 106 of our local, immediate property and then the thousands of acres of available open space and the woodlands adjacent to the property to the south, east and west and that impacts to the forest birds are probably not important enough in this situation to be considered for additional studies.  With that, I will leave you to consider and any questions, if you have any, I’d be happy to answer them. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked my quick question, land there, all that large section that has nothing on it, is that developable?

Mr. Steve Marino responded that’s Dickerson Mountain and the other property is south of Dickerson Mountain.  I think that’s associated with Valeria and other – I think a lot of that is also open – is watershed lands, New York City DEP land. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated from this point back it’s all conservation easements from Valeria.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, just want to be clear.

Mr. Robert Foley asked Chris, were those photos, those two in our packet or previous in the Coleman…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked did you include these with your report Steve?

Mr. Steve Marino no I think they were 11’ x 17’ of each of these in the report, or there should have been.  You don’t have these guys?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no.

Mr. Steve Marino stated I’m sorry.  I’m happy to submit them.  They should have been included.  
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated email me the pdfs.

Mr. Steve Marino stated I can certainly do that.  They were meant to be included.

Mr. Robert Foley stated just those two.

Mr. Steve Marino stated just those two.

Mr. Robert Foley responded yes.

Mr. Steve Marino stated that would just give you some context as to the open space around this property.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I was thinking that obviously this should be referred to Steve Coleman to respond and then we thought that the whole application should be referred back to staff.  Ed has already sketched some things on a map over here so I think we’d like a meeting with the applicant. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated before we do the motion, is there anybody who has any – nothing else?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded yes, I just wanted to say that in Coleman’s report though, in terms of the habitat, the reason he wanted to look at it again in the spring is because he said that the species that he’s talking about that may be there are sensitive and should be preserved so I think that’s an issue we have to point to Coleman because if that is the case then, in my mind, that would mean we would want to wait a little bit longer.  I’d like him to respond to that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one other thing, when the lots got slightly bigger because of the reorganization of the septic areas, that needs to go back to our arborist, I believe, because our arborist was dealing with the original disturbance map and he’s still out there.  He said he was out there yesterday, he wasn’t going to go today. So Fred do you agree that additional trees would be tagged.

Mr. Fred Wells responded some of the septic areas went further than the tree survey so yes there’s some area that needs to be revisited.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated what I’ll do is I’ll talk to him immediately, try to get some idea of what that would cost, get some idea that you’re okay and then he can just stay out there.

Mr. Fred Wells responded sounds good to me.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I have another quick question: how long did it take you to do – I’m talking to Steve, how long did it take you to do that survey that you – the study that you did?

Mr. Steve Marino responded about three days.  A lot of calculations, number crunching.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think it would be appropriate to do another site visit on this at some point in time.  I know we’ve been there before but I’m not sure if that’s – it would be tough with the season being what it is.

Mr. Fred Wells stated now might be a better time than when it gets real cold.  It’s certainly walkable in from Hilltop.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it depends whether you want to do three on Sunday the 23rd.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we already have two others.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one’s going to be relatively quick.  It’s the industrial building and then the golf course, the driving range which may take a while.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated at that end of town, those two -- Verplank and near Croton border.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we’ll have to look at when we can do it at the next work session, we’ll take a look at when we can do it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair, I’ll move to refer this back to staff. 
Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there are several residents, I believe, in the audience.  This is not a public hearing.  It will ultimately to public hearing stage.  I keep in touch with a lot of you via email.  Any correspondence or questions that you have you can submit and it will get to the Planning Board and they will read them and they will be aware of them and then at some point they will actually schedule a public hearing where the whole meeting will be to hear your comments. 
Mr. ? asked Chris, is it possible to schedule a public hearing?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it would be up to the Planning Board. 

Mr. asked may I make a comment?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded briefly.

Mr. Steve Goldman stated I live at 1 Hilltop Drive.  It’s the house right by the proposed road into this development, proposed new development.  What I want everyone here to be aware of is, first of all it sounds like the whole party over here that’s proposing to do the building, the attorneys and surveyors and everybody, it sounds like they’re trying to fast-track this whole thing here which I really don’t appreciate.  What I wanted to add is, I bought my house there 15 years ago because it was a nice, quiet, residential development and beautiful and we love it.  To now, come in here, and this development is 25 years old, mind you, to now come here and disrupt an existing community that’s been there for 25 years is going to affect me and all of my neighbors and my family, why?  Because, now we have to put up with the noise, the pollution, the dust, the trucks going up and down.  My kids play out in the front of my house all the time.  They can’t do that anymore so now this is disrupting my life, okay, and it’s disrupting my neighbor’s lives and I think if you all were in my shoes – you can’t really see all the stuff on these maps but a real life situation here that you can’t see on the maps is that it’s negatively affecting my life, my family’s life and everyone that lives in my area, their lives as well.  Again, to disrupt an existing community like that is the wrong to do and I would hope that all the members of the Planning Board here would take that into high consideration to reject this entire proposal.  It’s one thing if you’re building a community from scratch and everyone’s in on it and you’re expanding and you’re putting on new wings here and there, new streets, this and that.  This has been around for 25 years.  To disrupt my lifestyle like that is the wrong thing to do.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is not a public hearing.  This is the last comment we’ll entertain tonight.  You can come up.  

Ms. Kristin Wilson stated good evening your Honor and members of the Planning Board.  My name is Kristin Wilson.  I am a senior council with the law firm of Harris Speech out of their White Plains office.  I’m here representing Don Liebman and I’m just becoming familiar with this project.  I noticed you posted some of the documents today.  Just a few questions: 1) I don’t know if you’ve determined yet whether or not this is going to be a type I action under SEQRA and if you haven’t taken any action yet do you have any date by which you believe you will be declaring what type of action this is?  Another question is with respect to the tax payments.  I don’t know if you have a provision in your town code that requires taxes to be current prior to hearing an application but I don’t believe this property is current on its taxes.  I’m aware that there’s a separate agreement that the Town Board entered into that the Planning Board is not a party to so I’m not sure how that is impacting your decision to hear this application, but my understanding is since you are not a party to that agreement, you are not bound by it and that should not influence how you are treating this application.  Also, with respect to the SEQRA determination and the type of action, I know that there is a pretty thorough environmental review done previously on this application and I would encourage this board to declare this a type I action and do a full Environmental Impact Statement this time around as well.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ve heard your comments and we’re not making comments tonight so this is fine.  They’re on the record and…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you can direct those questions to our office as well and we can address them.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, it can maybe be clarified at a future work session on this in one of the handouts, it may be semantics, the wording of the phrase…. “Open space lot to be dedicated.”  Can we get a definition at a future meeting, not now, exactly what that means as opposed to – I know there wouldn’t be any easements here.  I bring it up because in the past we had a recent one where we had “open parcel” – I mean easement parcel and this is “open space.”  Again, for further explanation, at a work session. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you’re looking for a definition?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it is mentioned in the agreement between the town and the applicant.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s something certainly that we can handle, especially since you’re going to be in conversation with the applicant.

Mr. Fred Wells asked should we plan to meet with the staff?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded they’ll work it out with you guys.  We have enough to manage our own schedule.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you so much.

PB 1-14      d.
Application of Hudson National Golf Club for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a Country Club and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a private golf driving range and teaching facility located on an approximately 19.4 acre parcel of property located north of the existing Hudson National Golf Club, south of Hollis Lane, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Hudson National Golf Course Driving Range and Teaching Facility” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated May 20, 2014.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonoco stated just to let you know where we’ve been for the last six months.  We’ve been at the Zoning Board and I don’t know if you get it in your packet but the Zoning Board did approve our request by interpreting that that parcel may be used, our parcel, our 20-acre parcel may be used as – the golf course may be used as one parcel which includes our parcel for land use and for any other zoning matters.  We don’t have any zoning issues at this point.  It’s as though the parcel fully complies with the requirements of the zoning.  I spoke to Mr. Klarl who’s very familiar with it and I assume he wrote the Decision and Order so if I’m saying something that’s…
Mr. John Klarl stated had an application before the Zoning Board and you received a favorable result.  If you recall the Zoning Board could action the alternative nature and they took selection #1, the longest caption we had in the Zoning Board history. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s right.  You also had your wetland’s consultant out to the site, Steve Coleman.  He’s produced a report.  Our wetland’s consultant has been out to the site.  We will provide that report as well.  We will provide our own report after looking at Mr. Coleman’s report. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated along those lines, you may have already done it but you have a drawing, please provided a drawing that shows his wetlands and his wetland buffers. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I will do that obviously but what we want to do is we want our wetland person – I think Mr. Coleman was talking about some issues he had with the zone interpretation of where the wetland started and ended so we want to have our wetland’s person consult with him and come to an agreement.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the board would prefer that whatever our consultant says is at least graphically represented and then separately you can have your consultant debate that.  

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s no problem.  Just to let you know, if you look at the drawing on the upper right corner, there’s a green, the landing green on the upper right hand corner and underneath that, all the way up on the right there, and then if you look straight down there’s a detention basin right there.  That’s an existing detention basin for the golf course.  As a matter-of-fact I designed that 20 years ago and the outlet of that detention basin is right above that arrow and where that detention basin releases water we always have known there’s been a little bit stream there, especially during rain and we noted that on our site plan that this was an area that had to be looked at by a wetland consultant but when Mr. Coleman went out there he kind of drew it a little bit further to the left there than I would have imagined it.  We had Mr. Moreno, who was here a few minutes ago, go out and take a look at it and he’ll be producing his own report.  Mr. Coleman already showed his on our site plan but…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think he showed it in the sense he sketched it on. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated he did already show it so it was nothing new.  We also have a standing request before your board which I don’t think we need to discuss right now because it really follows on what I’m going to ask next is that we have a site visit sometime this month.  I think it’s really important for each member of the board to actually see this property and once we do that I think we can get into the question of the trees and so on and so forth that have been described by the arborist already.  We have a standing request, a standing waiver that we do not need to locate every 4-inch tree on the property because we have to take down every tree to build this driving range. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I can’t accept that because the point of the law is that we get to know how many trees you have 4 inches and over so we can determine the site but you’re saying that you’re taking down all these trees.  It doesn’t make sense.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated what I’m just suggesting is before you make a decision, you come look at it.  If you feel that we need to locate every 4-inch tree on the property we will do it.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated well, that’s the law.  So, I feel that we have to do that.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded the law says that you can waive that, so that’s what we’re asking.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I think it’s wasting our time to go out there if we don’t…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s not the only reason you’re going out there.  You’re going out there to see the property.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated no it’s not, so we go out there again?  That’s what you’re suggesting?  Go out there and take a look and decide whether we have to go out again?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, I’m suggesting that if you see the trees that it may be easier for you to make a decision one way or the other.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but our arborist went out there and he feels that he doesn’t have enough information to give us a recommendation and that’s his job to recommend to us and…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated Mr. Rothfeder if you want us to locate the 4-inch trees, we’ll do it.  It’s just a lot of extra work, that’s all.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I don’t see why we should not do it.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated if the whole board feels that way, we’re going to do it.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I don’t know how the rest of the board feels but I think that’s something that’s been coming up as long as you come up about this and we keep talking about it but we finally had the arborist go out and he’s made it clear that there is an area on the property that could be some good trees there that should be save and we can’t make that determination and he can’t unless we tag those trees.  That’s what he said.
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I really have to read his report over again.  I didn’t get that from that report but I will read it again. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated he said there are likely to be about 1,800 to 2,000 trees over the 19 acres that would fit into the 4-inch to 24-inch range and that those are the trees that could be the ones we may want to save and thus change the site plan a bit. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated well the application is to cut them all down. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I know.  I understand that but I mean just because that’s the application it’s our job to determine whether we accept it or not.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded well, we can’t build a driving range without cutting them all down so you can tell us right now. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked how can I make a decision if I don’t know if I want those trees cut down.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated if you want the species of every tree on that property for every 4-inch tree on that property…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I want the arborist to be able to give us a recommendation. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated okay and we will do that.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated we certainly wouldn’t want to be arbitrary and capricious about our decision. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated absolutely, and again, if you want us to locate them we’ll locate them.  It’s just a lot of extra work. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that’s how I feel.  I don’t know how the rest of the board feels. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated when you read the report, Ralph, it’s in the summary the last paragraph about what Jeff is talking about, the 1,800 to 2,000.

Mr. Peter Daly stated and the law is actually very clear, 4 inches and above.  No one makes it if someone doesn’t want to do it.  It has to be done.
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated Mr. Daly, my responsibility is to make sure that – is to let you know that you also have the right to waive that.  If you don’t want to waive it that’s fine with me, we’ll just have to do more work, but I hope when we do locate all those 4-inch trees you’ll sit down and look at every single one of them.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded we’ll have the arborist do it.  That’s what he’s supposed to do. 

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I think if you go on the site as I have been on the site you’ll see that a lot of these trees are just – they’re forest trees and when you have forest trees they’re really not worth as much as a tree that’s been out in the open, it has it’s full canopy and so on and so forth but you can make that decision yourself.  Just getting back, I would like to know if the board could take the time to set a site walk for the property.  It’s November, if you can get out there in November that might be helpful.  There might still be some leaves on the trees, it would be a good idea.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we actually did talk about a site inspection for this month, later so we will be going out to see the site on November 23rd.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated just so you know we would probably meet in the parking lot of the golf course and we could just walk over there.  It’s a nice little walk.  Do you have a rain date or something like that because the weather this time of year can be terrible?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded we didn’t decide on a rain date.  We usually meet on a Sunday and actually this is not the normal Sunday for us.  The normal Sunday for us is the first Sunday, generally speaking…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I do think, unless it’s awful, the board has been out in sprinkles and rain before.  Hopefully it won’t be awful but we’ll make that decision pretty much the night before or the day of if they’re just not going to go.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated well, that’s what I’m saying.  If there’s a no-go, I’m really trying to get this thing and move it along because we kind of lost 6 months here.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you can’t go on the 30th because that’s the Sunday of Thanksgiving weekend so that’s why we moved it to the 23rd and then the next Sunday is after the December Planning Board meeting anyway.  Hopefully the weather will be fine on the 23rd. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked Ralph, you mentioned about parking, does that mean you’ll work it out?  Do we just drive up the hill and through the gates of the golf…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, you can go through the gate and just come up, you will circle and there’s a big parking lot to the left.  We’ll all meet there at whatever time – is it the first one?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no, you’ll be the second one.  The first one shouldn’t be a long thing.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it would probably be around quarter to ten I guess by the time you get down there. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated something like that.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked and that’s Sunday the 23rd?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I’ll send out a memo.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the walk down is on a pathway?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, it’s real nice.  It’s a golf course. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and you’ll be walking in the village of Croton.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated you go up Arrowcrest Road.  I don’t know if you’ve ever been there.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s the distance between the parking lot and where we have to go to?  I’ve never been over there.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded 2,000 feet.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’ve never been over there so I have no idea where we’re going.  

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked are we all set then?

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we receive and file the Zoning Board of Appeals decision with respect to this application and to schedule a site inspection for November 23rd.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you on the 23rd.


*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS 

PB 14-13    a.
Application of Acadia Cortlandt Crossing, LLC  for Site Development Plan approval and for  Wetland, Tree Removal and Steep Slope Permits for a 170,000 sq. ft. shopping center for property located at 3144 East Main Street (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Cortlandt Crossing”  prepared by Divney, Tung & Schwalbe, LLP dated October 24, 2014 (see prior PB 33-06).

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the board, David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz, here this evening.  Good to see all of you.  Here tonight representing Acadia Realty Trust in connection with this application.  We’re going to try to be fairly brief for you tonight.  We’re here largely in connection with a proposed zoning map change in conjunction with a site plan.  As the Chair indicated, we are here in connection with a proposed 170,000 square foot retail center across from the Cortlandt Town Center, owned by the owners of the Cortlandt Town Center.  With me this evening from Divney Tung & Schwalbe; Mr. Gerald Schwalbe as well as Matt Steinberg.  What you have before you or had before you momentarily is a proposed 170,000 square foot new center on 36 acres.  The site is, I think you all know, the former Frooks property that many in town refer to it as, is bisected and separated into two zoning districts; the frontage along Route 6 and a commercial zone.  The rear portion of the site is in a residential zone.  The proposal in front of the Town Board is by petition to move the zoning line and back to the north to facilitate the development of the shopping center.  In addition to the proposed map change, there’s also pending before the Town Board the creation of a proposed new town sewer district, the modification of an existing town sewer district, the expansion of a county sewer district, the creation of a new signalized intersection at Baker Street.  The result of all that was that the Town Board declared itself lead agency for SEQRA purposes, as this board’s aware.  There is a Draft Environmental Impact Statement preliminary draft before the town and its consultants for acceptance and once that takes place, the process will move forward before the Town Board in conjunction with a public hearing under SEQRA on the DEIS and the rezoning.  We elected, however, to file our proposed site plan with your board simultaneously somewhat at our own peril obviously because at the moment we can’t secure approvals without the zoning line moving but we were encouraged to begin the process in front of the Planning Board.  We’re excited to do that and tonight we simply wanted to do a very short presentation so that you begin to understand the nuts and bolts of the site, the layout, the proposed orientation of the buildings and some general information on utilities.  We’re not expecting to make any kind of comprehensive, full blown presentation but we’re here with our team to certainly take you as far as you would like to go.  I’m going to turn it over to Gerald Schwalbe.  He’s going to walk us through the site, the orientation of the buildings, some of our numbers in terms of proposed parking spaces, a little bit about our drainage and utilities.  We look forward to moving forward with your board, essentially concurrently with the Town Board.  I’m going to turn it over to Gerry.
Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated thank you David.  Good evening Madame Chair, members of the board.  My name is Gerry Schwalbe.  I’m with the firm of Divney Tung & Schwalbe and we have worked on the site plan for Arcadia.  I don’t know if you could go back to the other one Chris?  I just wanted to explain a little bit about the existing site conditions.  As David mentioned, it’s a 36-acre site.  There had been previous development on there.  A lot of it had deteriorated, has been vacated in some places and, as you know, along Route 6 there’s some smaller businesses and a former gas station and there’s some derelict structures also in the back of the site that are no longer used.  The main residence is also in disrepair, a tree had fallen down on it and we had Hurricane Sandy and a lot of the trees on the site had fallen and created some damage as well.  The map you have there is facing north to south with Route 6 at the bottom there, that’s on a diagonal.  Town of Yorktown is up on Lexington right there on the right hand side.  With the majority of the development along Route 6, as mentioned, you can see some of the buildings there.  There’s about 3.6 acres of impervious area.  With the road that goes back towards the center of the site where the pond is, it’s a slight rise back up to the pond.  To give you a sense of reference, the pond’s elevation is elevation 340, the road at the Route 6 and the center is around 317 so there’s a little bit of a drop.  There’s a stream that comes through there.  Most of its man-made and rerouted through the years.  Then, in the back there’s on the top right hand corner, there’s some old derelict houses that had been demolished, they were not safe.  There’s some clearing in that area and off to the left there’s a wetland section there above the pond and adjacent to the Van Cortlandtville school which is pretty much undeveloped.  There may have been development in the far past but we’re not sure, but it’s pretty much undeveloped right now.  To the top right corner you have the Cortlandt Colony private development and the rows that are private and on the right hand side you have a single-family residences along that side.  Then, there’s a small section of highway business quarter along Route 6 which fronts on Route 6 next to this site on both the east and west side of the site.  Predominantly on the west side you have the school and on the south you have the Cortlandt Town Center which is over 7,000 square foot shopping center which you’re well aware of.  Generally, the site slopes from the back to the front towards Route 6.  All the drainage flows down towards Route 6, pond being a major feature of this site and then there’s an off-site wetland west of the site that begins on the school property.  The predominant zoning around the site is R-40 not including the school.  As I mentioned, along Route 6 there’s the highway business quarter and then the site’s, as David mentioned before, is in the CD zone, a designated commercial zone of about 9.4 acres.  This application would like to increase the CD zone to 16.6 acres or approximately 7.82 acres in addition and then the back remaining area, which is undeveloped, of 19 acres.  Under this proposed plan it would be 19 acres left as undisturbed as shown in the current condition.  Chris is going to load the site plan.  The only -- and I apologize the orientation here is now a different orientation so Route 6 is on the left hand side.  As you recall, the site went back quite a distance.  There’s about 1,000 feet of frontage on the road.  Some of the planning principles that we had for this site was: 1) utilize existing driveways.  Across the street you’ll see the main driveway towards the Cortlandt Town Center which will align with the proposed access to the new site and then there’ll be another secondary entrance and exit: right turn in only and right out only on the east side of the site; 170,000 square feet, there’s a main center portion building which will be divided into different retail stores: a couple of pads in the front which are slightly low elevation and then one could be restaurant and one could be a bank of some kind.  We’re not sure what the retail is going to be.  Then, on the right hand side of the pad, there’s a two-story element: 1) the thought was the upstairs would be -- the second floor would be a fitness club; about 38,500 square feet and the rest of it would be a one-story element within the zoning height limits that the town has.  There’s approximately – proposed here is 756 parking spaces, using your parking ratio of 5.5 per thousand.  Grade-wise, the site begins at Route 6, as I mentioned about elevation 314.  The building’s slope up to an elevation of about 325 and then the back of the building is a two-story element and it slopes back up to the back of the building and the parking lot in the back area is about elevation 350 or so.  I mentioned the pond was at 340 so slightly higher than that area, than the pond is.  This site also has access at two other points: one is at Lucs Lane which is a cul-de-sac that comes off from the east side adjacent to the property and Cardoza Avenue which is on the north at Cortlandt Colony which is a private street – actually it’s a paper street adjacent to it.  Actually the drainage comes down through there now and that’s the only two points of access that they have frontage on, none of which are planned for access, they’re meant to be closed off so-to-speak and not used for access at all, although the folks that live there obviously use the property here and there to walk through.  As part of this planning process we also want to create a significant berming and landscaping opportunity beyond of which the setback, the buffers are 50 feet, we’ve provided 100 foot setback buffer along the eastern property line between Lucs Lane and parking area.  What we’re trying to do is create some sort of a berm.  We have some excess material and we want to create a 10-foot berm in that area plus the trees on top of that and sort of wrap around the back of that parking lot to sort of create a nice buffer for that.  We also created lighting in that back parking lot, lower elevations of 14 feet and normally I like to you use higher lighting like 25 or 30 feet so we can keep the light levels down, use the shoebox fixtures so everything is downward generated.  As I mentioned before, the drainage all comes through the back of the building towards the front.  So we have a pond area there that drains out.  We’re going to install a pipe system to carry it through to the front.  You’ll see that one building pad in that green area, there’s an opportunity to create a day lighting section there that could be tied into a restaurant and make that a feature of some kind and in the future – a day lighting meaning have the stream open and planted and make it look like a nice feature.
Mr. Ed Vergano asked how deep would that be?

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded the original plan was pretty deep; it was about 8 feet deep from the top and there was some discussion with the Town Board members and other planning and even Ed as mentioned as well – it’s kind of deep and you’re not really going to get the feeling of a nice little stream coming through there so we provided an alternative that’s in your site plan package that we would create a smaller pipe on top so-to-speak.  Actually this is what was done at the Saw Mill River down in Yonkers at Getty Square.  The left the main line down below and they put a small line on top of it which would handle the normal flows that come through but in major storm you have the capacity below it.  By doing that we allow to raise the level of the water up higher and have the stream effect so everyone can enjoy and see it without having to worry about the flood flows that come through.  There’s always that challenge of trying to get that flood flows but the stream look more decent in a way as well.

Mr. Robert Foley asked how wide would the day lighting be?

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded  about 4 or 5 feet, put some stones in it.

Mr. Robert Foley asked a foot bridge over it?

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded we have a foot bridge planned for the middle of it and we try to make maybe two or three little step weirs like one or two feet high so as you walked over you can see the water flow down to Route 6 as a feature.  There are times in the summer when it’s really dry, it does dry up and the flow stops.  There’s water in the pond obviously but the level of the water goes down quite a bit.  So we want to design something that can handle both the wet and the dry conditions and still look good in a way so I think that’s important to feature that.  A lot of trees on this site.  We’re adding about 780 trees in this area many of which you can see where the berm is and we’ll want to work with the Planning Board as we get further into it the type of trees and what kind of trees.  We have a philosophy of not putting all 3-inch caliber trees on this site but mixing it up with different species, different sizes, they tend to grow better and really strengthen the berm that could be out there and could be beneficial.  The pond would stay as it is.  It would be a reinforcement of the dam that was built there by whoever had built it years ago.  There’s a little concrete section there we’d have to remove that and replace that and replant that whole buffer edge along the pond so it doesn’t wash out and create a problem.  Creating a lot of walking areas within the site where we can in the front.  Opportunities to create some sitting areas in the front, things like that.  Pretty much full access back-and-forth from the east and the west side.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what’s the advantage of the rezoning that you’re asking for, it may be obvious but I just want for the record, could you talk us through that?

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded and I think you’ll see a little bit more when you actually get the EIS which you’ll get copies of.  And maybe you remember the earlier applications included a smaller density of retail – I think it was like 90,000 square feet and in the back they had a conventional subdivision in the back.  This application is saying: no, we’re not doing the back.  We’re leaving that open and we’re expanding the front area from the 90,000 to 170,000 square feet.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated generally speaking, the zoning line would have been somewhere in here and then the zoning line for this is being pushed…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated to include all the parking area.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated it’s about 7 acres additional for zone change.
Mr. Robert Foley stated from a safety standpoint, the pedestrian walkway along Route 6 – I know you have a 25-foot landscape buffer and then the walkway, and then Route 6 curbing.  How much space…

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded the walkway is – well it begins along Route 6 because you’re coming through there.  We’re hoping there will be a bus stop there.  The county would have to opine on that but there would be a walkway from there that would circulate back up where that stream is, that green area, and that would then come back into the parking lot.  The thought was that when you come through there – it’s interesting, both east and west on that side, there are no walkways, there’s no sidewalks so the school has none and over by Baker Street there are no walkways along there. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but you would have some sort of normal snow storage area between the travel lane of Route 6 and the sidewalk.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded yes, we can do that, that’s not a problem. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated because the sidewalk that goes up Route 6 pass Marshall’s going east is right on the curb.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated yes, there’s a brick band I think and then there’s a sidewalk but you don’t get…

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words, your design in here looks like part of it is right along the curb and then it juts in a little – there’s no measurement.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think part of that list is to create this Cortlandt Boulevard streetscape.  The idea is you bring the sidewalk in a little bit to the site. 

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated and we’re also trying to utilize the – I guess there’s a standard that light fixture used over by Westbrook on Route 6, we’re going to incorporate some of that along the street frontage as well, several lights like that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and one other thing that isn’t necessarily part of the site plan application but it’s shown on the drawing because the Planning Board would remember the Pondview discussion and the rearranging of that intersection over here with the Baker Street intersection.  That’s a function of what the Town Board is doing but it’s just shown on this plan.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated that’s a big part of the plan that is being undertaken by this application and, as Chris mentioned, that little diagram there, that site plan is a reconfiguration of the Mohegan Beer & Soda store moving it further east allowing room to line up then with Baker Street because right now that’s right opposite Baker Street and then the opportunity then to come back into the Cortlandt Town Center so Cortlandt Town Center would have to relocate their driveway further east to line up for that so that would become that so-called Town Road section of town I think would take ownership at least to the beginning part of where the Cortlandt Town Center parking lot is.  That would become a town road.  That then allows what gives an opportunity for Pondview to come in through the backend.  I don’t know the details of their plan that much but they would be able to come in that town road so-to-speak and then go out towards Route 6.  They wouldn’t have to go out further east on Route 6 and that would also give us, according to the State DOT, a warrant of getting more traffic at that intersection allows them to justify the need for a signal there which is very important for the Baker Street residents as well.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the dangerous curb cuts that exist now where Pondview is onto Route 6 on the hill.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded yes, I would guess.  I don’t know exactly their details but they wouldn’t have to do that anymore.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are you concerned at all that you might not generate enough traffic to get the warrant or is that not a problem?

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded Ed’s office had preliminary discussions already with the state I think.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it meets the warrant.  The proposed reconfiguration meets the warrants.  That’s going from a three-way intersection into a four-way intersection.  Also, that improvement would include a left turn lanes going in both directions on Route 6. 

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated there would be some widening just to get that left turn lane in.  The width of the left turn will be reviewed with DOT but it’s certainly doable.  Then at Pondview we would need to provide real estate to do that widening. My understanding is that they’re willing to do that. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked while we’re on Route 6 and safety, why not a one-way only in entrance into your site near Baker where your property begins?  Is it there?
Mr. David Steinmetz stated right in, right out.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I see it now.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated you wouldn’t be able to make a left out there because you’d need a signal. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I just mean right in, right out. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we have another one actually at the west side. 

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated that’s really just a right out. That’s not an inbound lane.  That’s just to get if there’s any trucks that are there, get them out onto Route 6. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated talk briefly Gerry about the utilities.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated actually while you’re here, right about where the Mohegan Beer & Soda is, just to the west of that, there’s an area where the existing driveway is now that would become additional real estate available for a sewage pump station that would be dedicated to the town and it would be sized to handle let’s say Pondview and even Mohegan Beer and others that are there, even including the Baker Street residents if they ever wanted to extend their sewer.  Apparently there’s a dry sewer across the street already that the DOT installed, it just doesn’t go anywhere and that would be reconnected into this pump station so if they ever wanted to come in or even those businesses that are along Route 6 that had expressed some interest in connecting as well could do so.  Obviously they have to petition the Town Board to come in but I think the county would allow them to come in as well.  As part of that we would take the, by gravity, sewer line across from the new project across Route 6, into this pump station and also, if you go further north where the school is, there’s an opportunity to connect the school into the sewer system as because I know the school is very interested in the past to connect to the site. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the school is currently on a separate aging system.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated and the septic system is just to the south of their bus repair station or maintenance building that they’ve built not too far back and as part of that the school has expressed, or allowed us to bring the sewer line from that pump station on Cortlandt Town Center across the developed site through the back of their property and up to Joe Drive which is at the top of the hill there and then allow that then go gravity down to Westbrook and into the county trunk sewer.  That would become more of a larger, not regional, but a pump station system that would be able to handle not just this site but other sites as well.  As part of this, Ed Vergano had asked us to take a look at the Cortlandt Town Center system and see if there was a way to take the core of the campus, take the core of the center and bring it into this pump station to alleviate flows on Westbrook for which they have some concerns and some capacity issues.  There’s an opportunity to maybe improve some of that as well by taking this all here where this site is and bring it back on to Westbrook where it’s not a problem and have an opportunity to not only to create capacity for this site but for other sites as well on Route 6. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s why you heard me refer to the fact that we’re proposing to create new sewer districts as well as modify the existing Fawn Ridge district, pull some of the Town Center out of Fawn Ridge.
Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated as we go through the school and impact the school’s septic system and we had outlined a location and the routing in the DEIS, we’ve covered that in terms of the impacts.  The school could then connect into the sewer on the west side of this property line in pretty close proximity to their septic system.  I’d be happy to take any questions.  We can go onto other details but if you have any specific questions at this time. 

Mr. Jim Creighton asked I haven’t seen the DEIS yet but I’m sure we’ll be getting it soon.  What are the plans or have you guys been studying how to reduce vehicle trips in connection with the overall site, the Cortlandt Town Center and this center?  Is somebody going to have to drive across the street over to your campus, will there be any safe walking across?  Will there be a jitney service or something, an internal loop that maybe can relieve some – there’s a lot of parking obviously proposed.  There’s probably an opportunity to bank some of it or to do something so that maybe it all doesn’t have to be paved right away but that would rely on there being something more creative.  I don’t know if you guys have been studying that or thought about it but hopefully the Town Board will be looking into that with you guys.

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe stated they are and they asked us to – and it was added into the DEIS is to study a jitney service at some point together with other businesses in the area, obviously a jitney I don’t believe works with one business owner or one development site.  It needs to have some connection to other businesses to make it worthwhile but obviously that would have to be studied.  We are providing a sidewalk across the street that’ll be reinforced much better than it is now.  Right now it’s kind of open and we’ll have to study that a little bit further as we get into it with DOT as well but coming from the Cortlandt Town Center, having a walkway coming up through and then, as we just discussed coming back along the front of the site and along that stream and then coming into the center of the site that way.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what do you mean buy in from other people for the jitney service?
Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded there’s other retailers that are along Route 6.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what about just between your two properties?

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded we’ll have to study it but it may not be feasible to provide a jitney service just for that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked with all the stores, with the 700,000 square feet at Cortlandt Town Center?

Mr. Gerald Schwalbe responded I agree with you on that side but there’s also human behavior that people drive here – will they actually use it is what I’m getting at.  We really should study and make sure it works but we also have to consider what the reality is.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just Steve, so you know, the developer…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated all of this will come out later.  We don’t have to get into this tonight quite honestly.  We’re not doing site plan approval tonight and we’re not going to…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but just so you know we actually went and took a look at the Town’s comprehensive plan and the town’s comprehensive plan talks about this at some length and it actually talks about integrating and connecting some of the residential neighborhoods in the town to the train station.  We, in our EIS are going to look at how this compliments and fits into that or not and there are already pages that are exploring both Jim’s question about safe pedestrian access from one site to the other as well as the jitney.  More to come.  We hear you loud and clear.  The Town Board raised it.  Your town’s consultants raised it as well so it’s clearly going to be analyzed.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and I believe, David, in the scope, the original scope because of the title Cortlandt Crossing, some of us, or at least I did mention that thinking “out of the box”, but what about an overpass pedestrian access?
Mr. David Steinmetz stated you did raise that and that was…

Mr. Robert Foley stated instead of traffic crossing Route 6 which is very wide and may be wider.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you have to keep in mind you’ll get the DEIS and you can raise that issue and they’ll be able to address it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I think it was in the original scope.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated correct, and I believe there was some discussion in the draft EIS which you will see.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I mean, it may open up a “can of worms” regarding maintenance in the future but I mean it would provide that link between the existing Town Center and the new area, a safe link.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Bob, you did raise it.  I’ve heard you say this before and I’m telling you it’s being addressed in the EIS and I’m sure we’re going to talk about it further.  At the moment, just to be candid and precise, it’s definitely not the applicant’s proposal.  The applicant does not think, and I’m not sure DOT would even allow it but we understand for SEQRA purposes we’ve got to analyze it and respond.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any other questions, concerns at this moment?
Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I live on 6 Lucs Lane which is the house right at the end of the cul-de-sac on the right hand side.  I hear all these nice thing about we want to make a stream so it’s going to be visual.  I don’t want to look at a stream.  There should be no stream there and if you look, you’re actually squeezing all this between the school and residential area.  And I hear all this talk about “we’re going to install trees, we’re going to put everything here,” but I haven’t heard one word about what’s going to happen with the residents that live there.  How are you going to impact their lives?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I think your comments though are probably more appropriate for the Town Board who is actually…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated they are sir.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated because all we’re doing is the site plan.  Ultimately the Town Board…

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated they are.  To answer your question, I ask you now today, don’t even accept it.  Send these guys home because this is ridiculous.  Look at what you have right there.  Look at what you’re creating in that one little area.  You have a million parking spots.  You have the Cortlandt Town Center – hold on if I may.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated yes, but it’s our job – no, it’s not a public hearing.  We’re given an application, it’s our job to review it and we will do that.  Your input belongs with the Town Board who is the lead agency on this application.  When it comes to us, we’ll be looking at the site plan and making determinations about the site plan.  

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated so I ask you, going forward, take into consideration what you’re doing to the families around there.  Take into consideration the impact that you’re having on people’s lives.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated again, Town Board issues, not here.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated again, but I’m just asking if you would take that into consideration.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated when it comes to us, we’re just reviewing the site plan.  When it comes to us the Town Board’s already, in effect, approving it.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they’re the approving agency on this particular site.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated very good.  I stand corrected then…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so all your comments should be directed to the Town Board.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated the other thing, if I may, with the site plan, if I just have a question on that we talk about the jitney service and so on and so forth.  You want to extend the commercial area to residential area, I say “no.”  I say take that, if you have to do it, take that building put it up against Route 6 and get a bridge, jitney service or whatever.  Let them get across that parking lot is ridiculous.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated your comments are very important but we’re not the board that’s tasked to hear that so I encourage you to make sure, watch for the signs, there’ll be plenty of opportunity for public hearing and the Town Board needs to hear those voices.  There are going to be a lot of different voices but it’s important that the people who are tasked to hear that actually hear that because you’re talking to us but it’s not getting to the right ears.
Mr. Dominic Esposito stated I get it but on the other side you have to also understand our side where we’re the residents and we say don’t even accept this because you’re actually squeezing something between two things there.  You’re literally squeezing – it’s not like you have any room anywhere.  You’re actually squeezing it between a school and residential area.  That’s all I’m saying.  On top of that to think that you’re not going to increase traffic.  And then I hear “we’re going to have enough traffic to put a light there.”  Is that what we’re looking for?  Are we really looking to increase traffic flow in that area where we have an accident almost weekly?  It sounds ridiculous.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated we’re hear you.  Sounds like they were going to help fix your issue but we definitely hear you.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is there any idea Chris when the Town Board would have their first hearing?  They haven’t accepted the DEIS yet.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded probably January.  That’s my guess.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so keep tabs, that’s the time to speak up.

Mr. Dominic Esposito stated thank you.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I had a question Loretta, maybe peripheral but – maybe staff can answer this.  CD parcel right between the school property and the far western end of this site, we approved that years ago.  Isn’t that the Mongero…
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes…no standing anymore.  It was approved once but they have to start over.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we refer this application back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all for your patience this evening and we’ll see you when we get back before your board.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.



*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a couple of additional items that we’ve added to the agenda tonight.

PB 44-95    b.
Letter dated 10-29-14 from John Lentini requesting the Planning Board’s approval for changes to the building located at 2084 Cortlandt Boulevard (Route 6).
Mr. John Lentini stated good evening Madame Chairman, members of the board.  I’m here to determine whether what we have to do in advance of my client’s application.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know what we have to do.  Did you have a conversation with staff at all on this?

Mr. John Lentini responded yes, I have.  I’m filing with Code Enforcement.  In fact, I finished the plans today and I gave them to my client.  He has to gain signatures and put it through the process but it should be in town tomorrow addressing what the Code Enforcement was focused on; it was emergency lighting, aisle width and some work they did before I got involved.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the disappearing doors, or are the reappearing. 

Mr. John Lentini responded the changing doors.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to approve this based on the conversations you’ve had already with staff and our initial concerns prior have been sort of, I guess ameliorated or in some way resolved.  You can go ahead and move forward.  We’re going to do an approval by motion please.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we approve this application by motion subject to DOTS approval. 

Seconded.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I had one quick item that I just wanted your client to remember that it’s one of the pet peeve things.  The Valeria signs are all over the place.  I just ask, and I think you’ve already – your client’s already been advised but to ensure that those signs are within the sign code that they only go out on Friday and they’re picked up by Sunday or whatever the code says.  They shouldn’t be there permanently and they are a visual clutter around the town that…
Mr. John Lentini stated I’m not familiar with the signs.

Mr. John Klarl stated probably the flooring place.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated to make sure that you don’t have your signs out…

Mr. John Lentini stated I’m glad you warned me.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we want you to pick up the Valeria signs is what he’s saying.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that wasn’t intended for you.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated withdrawn.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. John Lentini stated thank you.

PB 02-12    c.
A letter dated 10-29-14 from Andrew Donchez requesting Planning Board approval for a temporary sales office in model homes located on lots 10, 11, and 12 in Valeria.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there were some discussions at the work session and we felt that we could go ahead with this.  They’ve talked to staff so Mr. Daly, please.
Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s me.  I make a motion that we approve by motion subject to Department of Technical Services application.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair it’s 9:15 I move that we adjourn.
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Next Meeting: TUESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2014

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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